STATE OF IOWA DEPARTMENT OF Health and Human services

Medicaid Managed Care Oversight Quarterly Meeting Minutes SFY2023, Quarter 2

Meeting Date Range:

July - September 2022

Published December 2022

Meeting History (July - September 2022)

This report consolidates meeting minutes on a quarterly basis from each of the following committees: Healthy and Well Kids in Iowa (Hawki) Board, Medical Assistance Advisory Council (MAAC), and the Iowa Council on Human Services Members (or DHS Council).

All information contained in this report is also available online.

Hawki Board: Also reference https://dhs.iowa.gov/hawki/hawkiboard August 22, 2022	
MAAC: Also reference https://dhs.iowa.gov/ime/about/advisory_groups/maac August 18, 2022	
DHS Council: Also reference https://dhs.iowa.gov/about/dhs-council July 14, 2022 August 11, 2022 September 14, 2022	



Elizabeth Matney, Medicaid Director

Healthy and Well Kids in Iowa (Hawki)

Hawki Board Meeting Minutes

Monday, August 22, 2022

Hawki Board Members	Iowa Medicaid
Mary Nelle Trefz, Chair – present	Elizabeth Matney, Director
Angela Burke Boston – present	Amela Alibasic
Jim Donoghue – present	Julie Lovelady
Mike Stopulos –	Rebecca Curtiss
Angela Doyle Scar – present	Lynh Patterson
Mary Scieszinski – present	Tashina Hornaday
Shawn Garrington – present	Emily Eppens
Senator Nate Boulton –	Shelley Horak
Senator Mark Costello –	
Representative Shannon Lundgren –	
	Guests
	Addie Trueblood, DDIA
	John Hedgecoth, Amerigroup
	Kristin Pendegraft, ITC
	Jean Johnson, IDPH
	Lindsay Paulson, Maximus
	Kelli Soyer
	Eric Richardson
	Josh Carpenter, IDA
	Becki Wedemeier
	Mikki Stier
	LaBridgette Tensley
	Chaney Yeast, Blank Children's Hospital

Call to Order and Roll Call

Board Chair Mary Nelle Trefz called the meeting to order at 1:00 PM via Zoom. Chair Trefz conducted a roll call, and the list above reflects the attendance. A quorum was established.

Approval of the Hawki Board Meeting Minutes

Chair Trefz called for a motion to approve the minutes from the June 20, 2022, meeting. The motion carried and the Board approved the minutes.

Public Comment

There were no public comments.

New Business

Chair Trefz asked how the Hawki Board and connected agencies can assist the state with the unwinding of the public health emergency (PHE). Amela Alibasic, Iowa Medicaid, stated that Iowa Medicaid is developing communications tool kits for members and providers that will assist with this process.

Hawki Board Annual Report

Tashina Hornaday, Iowa Medicaid, provided a summary of the report. She briefly touched on each section of the report, including a summarized history, key characteristics of the program, budget, COVID-19, outreach, structure of the board of directors, and several attachments, including the program organizational chart, information on referral sources, and current budget data. Chair Trefz asked the Board to weigh in on the annual report itself, and if any sections could be removed or moved to another document. Chair Trefz suggested that the history portion be removed, as it does not change annually, and that a section be added addressing the Board's charge of providing recommendations to the governor and legislature. Angie Doyle Scar suggested keeping a brief highlevel history in the report to provide context, and adding testimonials to the outreach portion. Jim Donoghue recommended that the history portion be moved to the program website as it's a natural place for people to turn to look for resources. Chair Trefz added that it's important to capture the work the Board has done over the past year, which would include the vision, mission, and areas of focus. Angle added that it may be advantageous to include geographically localized data for policymakers and other stakeholders, as well as generalized data that focuses on health outcomes and metrics. Mary Scieszinski proposed a statement in the report for those not familiar with the program stating that Iowa's Children's Health Insurance Program (CHIP) is known as Hawki.

Strategic Planning Discussion

Shelley Horak, Iowa Medicaid, lead this portion of the discussion. Shelley shared a document based on Board feedback that communicates the Board's strategic plan. She also offered a brief outline of the Board's strategic discussions over the last several months and how they lead to the creation of the document. Shelley touched on major areas including managed care organization (MCO) relations, recommendations to the governor and legislature, educational opportunities, and guiding principles for assessing conditions and outcomes. Shelley also proposed a new meeting format that would incorporate these new topics into future meetings. She then asked for the Board's feedback in determining a list of potential educational topics for 2023, presenting a list of suggested topics and asking Board members to prioritize them. Angie, Jim, and Angela Burke Boston suggested that the Board could benefit from learning more about childhood mental illness and associated conditions, such as depression and anxiety. Other topics the Board prioritized include developmental screenings, well child visits, autism, speech and language conditions, immunizations, and oral health.

Shelley then discussed presenting these topics within the context of educational platforms: data and data-driven practices, describing the population, and enhancing the program model. She asked Board members for additional educational topics that would fall in these categories. Chair Trefz proposed a look at behavioral health, Mary suggested an analysis of telehealth, and Jim recommended the Board look at a snapshot of the volume of dollars/unique lives for different service types, codes, and diagnoses. Jim and Angie suggested the Board take a look at CHIP programs in other states, specifically states that have similar demographics to Iowa, while Angela proposed discussing Iowa's enrollment and demographics.

Director's Update

Director Matney provided an update. She reminded Board members of the upcoming August provider and member townhall events. Iowa Medicaid will give a presentation at these townhall events that draws from multiple publicly available reports and will provide a picture of how Iowa's Medicaid program is performing and the program's metrics compared to other states. Director Matney briefly mentioned that the PHE will extend beyond October. Regardless of when the PHE is lifted, Medicaid is developing a comprehensive PHE unwind plan that will focus on communicating with members, provider, and stakeholders in the most effective ways, taking care not to overwhelm them with information, but also making them aware of coming events. Director Matney also mentioned the newly formed Iowa Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) and that people should expect to see rebranded communications and a combined website soon, with a full website redesign further down the line. Additionally, Director Matney walked the Board through the dashboards on the Iowa Medicaid website and demonstrated how they can be used to access data. Director Matney concluded by noting that Iowa Medicaid is working on multiple home- and community-based services (HCBS) projects that will ultimately be funded by the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA), and implementation of legislative appropriations, many of which went into effect July I, 2022.

MCO/Outreach/Communications Updates

John Hedgecoth, Amerigroup, provided an update. Amerigroup continues to prepare for the PHE unwinding process, having biweekly meetings with Iowa Medicaid to discuss flexibilities, processes, enrollments, and redetermination, with a focus on operational flexibilities and gathering data to determine the effectiveness of those flexibilities during the PHE. John briefly mentioned Amerigroup's COVID-19 vaccination efforts, specifically for children under the age of 5. Amerigroup waited 30 days after the release of the 5-and-under vaccine before contacting families and encouraging them to get vaccinated, focusing on those who were still undecided. Amerigroup also has a pediatric case management initiative with the goal of determining roles and responsibilities of all case management entities and standardizing processes. Amerigroup continues to focus on health equity, hosting their first health equity task force internal advisory body in August. John also touched on the housing stability initiative which has helped more than 600 members avoid eviction or transition out of homelessness, and reiterated that Amerigroup is

committed to expanding other social determinants of health (SDOH) initiatives.

Kristin Pendegraft, Iowa Total Care (ITC), provided an update. ITC continues to promote health equity measures, focusing on programs that increase physical activity and improve mental and behavioral health. ITC reached out to approximately 140 members who are due for wellness visits and assisted them in making appointments for an upcoming clinic event. ITC also hosted a back-to-school bash at the John R. Grubb YMCA and distributed backpacks to approximately 700 attendees. Additionally, ITC remains focused on overall member and provider satisfaction, and has assembled a satisfaction task force that will promote initiatives and engagement. The housing and resource team is looking at a proposal that would address youth homelessness in Linn and Johnson Counties. Finally, ITC is developing a proposal that would address mental health in kids transitioning from 8th grade to high school.

Addie Trueblood, Delta Dental of Iowa (DDIA), provided an update. DDIA continues to reach out to members who have not accessed DDIA services recently, and to those who are newly eligible for the program, ensuring members are aware of the benefits available to them. DDIA reports a 56% utilization rate for Hawki members accessing services during state fiscal year (SFY) 2022. Additionally, over 2,600 Hawki members received dental screenings and over 12,000 services were provided through the I-Smile Dental Home Initiative program in SFY 22, with more than half of those members being connected with services from a dental home. Addie also stated that DDIA recently participated in an outreach event in Waterloo and conducted outreach at the Iowa State Fair.

Outreach

Jean Johnson, HHS, provided an update. Jean said that Hawkeye outreach coordinators remained busy over the summer with health fairs and back-to-school events, and referred Board members to the accompanying success stories and photos in the materials packet. Jean mentioned collaborating with HHS and developing outreach to mark the 25th anniversary of the Hawki program. Jean then briefly spoke about a request for proposals (RFP) period coming to an end and that HHS is currently reviewing proposals. Outreach efforts continue to focus on smaller employers and others with close ties to their communities to increase awareness of the Hawki program.

Communication

Emily Eppens, Iowa Medicaid, informed the Board that HHS would be publicly releasing the department's new branding later in the week.

Next Meeting

Meeting adjourned at 2:38 PM. The next meeting will be Monday, October 17, 2022.

Submitted by John Riemenschneider Recording Secretary jr



Meeting Minutes AUGUST 19, 2022

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

MAAC Chair Angie Doyle Scar, Division of Public Health, called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.. Angie called the roll, attendance is reflected in the separate roll call sheet and a quorum was achieved.

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES

Angie called for a motion to approve minutes from the May 19, 2022, meeting. Shelly Chandler, Iowa Association of Community Providers, motioned to approve, Brett Barker, Iowa Pharmacy Association, seconded the motion, the minutes were approved.

MANAGED CARE ORGANIZATION (MCO) QUARTERLY REPORT QUARTER 3 STATE FISCAL YEAR 2022

Kurt Behrens, Iowa Medicaid, reviewed the MCO Quarterly Report for Q3 SFY 22. Kurt began by reviewing MCO enrollment, which stood at 787,187 members, an increase of 11,680 or 1.51 percent between Q2 and Q3 of SFY 22. Moving on to the financial summary of the report, Kurt noted that Amerigroup Iowa, Inc. (Amerigroup) had increased their third-party liability (TPL) claims recovery by \$6.4 million, a 38.76 percent increase. Amerigroup attributes this recovery to a rise in the number of major medical claims from the previous quarter, which in turn resulted in more recovered dollars. Kurt then discussed pharmacy prior authorizations (PAs), which have a federal requirement for all such PAs to be completed within 24 hours. Iowa Total Care (ITC) met this requirement for two out of the three months of the quarter, missing one PA in February, completing 6,789 of 6,790 Pharmacy PAs for that month. Amerigroup performed similarly, missing one PA in January, completing 9,593 of 9,594 for that month, and three Pharmacy PAs in February, completing 9,240 of 9,243. Call center performance metrics were reviewed next, Kurt highlighted the performance of both MCOs non-emergency medical transportation (NEMT) helplines. Amerigroup and ITC both contract with Access2Care for their NEMT helplines; for the past several guarters Access2Care has had difficulty meeting the required 80 percent service level threshold due to staffing issues. This quarter both MCOs NEMT Helplines operated by Access2Care exceeded the 80 percent service level threshold for all three months.

Brandon Hagen, Iowa Health Care Association, asked about Value Based Purchasing (VBP) metrics, specifically what constitutes VBP. Kurt answered that several factors go into it, and he'd be happy to send Brandon the specific data definitions via email, but generally the measure presented in the report is the percentage of members that interact with a VBP contract negotiated by their MCO. Director Elizabeth Matney added that the number in the report reflects the number of members covered under a

VBP agreement and is not the number of contracted services, but the number of their members that can access a VBP contracted service. Shelly asked to receive the VBP data definitions from Kurt as well.

Jason Haglund, public member, and co-chair, asked about network access metrics, specifically measuring differences between access in urban and rural areas. Kurt answered that many different layers of data analysis go into evaluating the difference in access between urban and rural settings, and that the quarterly report does not show this difference for every type of service, and it does not make sense to ask this question for some specialty services. Director Matney added that Exhibit B of the managed care contract contains the network adequacy standards broken down by provider type. Most of these standards do not differentiate between rural and urban settings. For primary care physician access, the standard is 30 minutes or 30 miles from the person's place of residence. Hospital and emergency services standards are slightly different. Director Matney quoted Exhibit B for hospitals:

"Transport time shall be the usual and customary, not to exceed 30 minutes or 30 miles, except in rural areas where access time may be greater. If greater, the standard needs to be the community standard for accessing care, and exceptions shall be justified and documented to the State based on community standards."

Director Matney noted that community standards means that the members' access to services must be the same whether they were on Medicaid or not.

Jason stated he was curious how workforce issues were affecting member's access to care. Director Matney agreed that is an issue but noted a silver lining of the Public Health Emergency (PHE) has been the rapid deployment of telehealth which should help bridge some gaps for members, especially in rural areas.

Kurt showed the council the Iowa HHS' Access and Quality Reporting tool, which measures access and quality by provider type. The tool shows the ratio of members to providers, how many units of service were performed, and how many claims went through each MCOs provider network versus how many were processed from providers outside their networks. Director Matney offered to share the Access and Quality Reporting template with anyone that is interested.

Shelly commented that the information on network adequacy and standards in rural versus urban settings was interesting, but currently the larger issue is whether providers are willing to accept members into service because of workforce shortages; stating whether a member can access care because of a provider's waitlist is a different question than traditional network adequacy. Director Matney agreed with Shelly, and said Iowa HHS is working on ways to measure this issue, part of this effort ties into Iowa Medicaid's modernization efforts.

Brandon asked about non-pharmacy claims denials, specifically the category "charge exceeds fee schedule/maximum allowable or contracted/legislated fee arrangement". Brandon stated that pharmacy providers follow a billing practice wherein they bill customary amounts for services and receive back a payment at the contracted amount, and if this is the case for non-pharmacy providers, why would a provider receive a denial for billing this way no matter how much the provider submitted for their customary charges? Kurt answered that he would investigate and get a summary for the MAAC. John McCalley, Amerigroup, said he'd have to take the question back as well.

Brandon asked if there is any way to look at the appropriateness of claims denials, from a provider perspective there are many denials received that are inaccurate. Kurt answered that such an analysis would require Iowa HHS to evaluate claims denials on a case-by-case basis, but that he would ask Amerigroup and ITC to look into putting together such a summary.

Angie highlighted the inclusion of mental health and behavioral health data provided on the report, noting that Dr. Shriver and Dr. Beeman had previously called for the presentation of this data. Angie invited Dr. Beeman to comment on the mental and behavioral health data in the report. Dr. Beeman said he was excited to see the inclusion of this data and has plans to review and track this data from quarter to quarter.

Dee Sandquist, public member, asked to make a comment: Dee sits on the Regions Mental Health Board for Southeast Iowa and at their last meeting a comment was made that the local Coordinator of Disability Services (CDS) had a client who was a case manager/parent. They couldn't figure out all the systems and services and the bottom line of the comment was a request to simplify the systems, specifically the systems associated with child mental health. Angie asked if the parent was having trouble accessing the providers or the benefits. Director Matney asked Dee to send her the parents contact information, and she would follow up with the parents.

Marcie Strouse, public member, commented that she also loved having the mental and behavioral health data for children but asked if this data was available for adults. Kurt said there are no current plans to share this data in the MCO Quarterly Report, but that this data could be added to dashboards available on Iowa HHS' website. Director Matney praised Kurt for his work building out reporting projects for Iowa HHS, specifically a project that translates data provided in quarterly reports into a live dashboard on the agency's website. Marcie added that the data for mental health is going to be especially important once the legislature is in session, citing an ongoing and increased need for mental health services around the state.

MEDICAID DIRECTOR'S UPDATE

Director Matney began her update by discussing the re-alignment of the Iowa Department of Public Health and the Department of Human Services into one agency known as the Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) effective July I, 2022. Director Matney stated that uniting the two agencies into one organization will allow for improved collaboration, data sharing, increased efficiencies and better collaboration between the two departments. Branding for the new agency will be released shortly along with tables outlining Iowa HHS' new organization. The PHE has not ended and is currently extended through the middle of October, however, the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) has not given notice that it will end in October, which indicates it will likely be extended again through the rest of the calendar year. Communications regarding plans for the unwinding process for the PHE are being developed. Iowa Medicaid is in the process of evaluating which flexibilities, such as telehealth flexibilities, implemented during the PHE will stay in place, and which flexibilities will end.

Once the PHE ends, Iowa Medicaid will be required to redetermine the eligibility of most members. When the PHE ends, members who have had an eligibility redetermination within the last 12 months will not need to have their eligibility re-examined until a further 12 months have passed. Iowa Medicaid has created work plans for these eligibility processes. Currently staff are focusing on ensuring members have their current address updated in the system, as eligibility redetermination forms will be mailed to affected members.

Iowa Medicaid will be awarding a contract for the recent managed care request for proposal (RFP) at the end of the month.

Mathematica is still working on the Community-Based Services Evaluation (CBSE). Liz said Iowa Medicaid is hoping to have this evaluation in hand for the next legislative session, as some issues may only be resolved through legislation.

Related to eligibility redetermination, Brandon Hagen noted that 180,000 members were added during the PHE and asked how many of these members Iowa Medicaid expects to stay on once the PHE ends. Liz said this is a difficult question to answer, but some organizations that study this topic estimate roughly 15 to 20 percent of members enrolled during the PHE will remain enrolled once the PHE ends, and eligibility redetermination processes have concluded. Iowa Medicaid has begun eligibility redetermination reviews and of the members reviewed so far, staff are reporting that this estimate of fifteen to twenty percent appears to be accurate.

Maribel Slinde asked about the onboarding of a new MCO. Liz said the managed care RFP is in evaluation and will have an announcement and letter of award at the end of this month.

UPDATES FROM THE MCOS

Amerigroup Iowa, Inc.

John McCalley, Amerigroup, began his update by noting the ongoing work collaborative efforts between Amerigroup and Iowa Medicaid to prepare for the end of the PHE. Amerigroup meets regularly with Iowa Medicaid and ITC to discuss these plans.

Amerigroup continues to collaborate with Iowa Medicaid, the State Resource Centers, and ITC to come into compliance with the Department of Justice transition of the State Resources Centers (SRCs). Amerigroup is looking to transition Glenwood Resource Center (GRC) members to Home-and Community-Based Services (HBCS) providers. These efforts include working with providers to build capacity. Capacity to accept new members requires training staff and as well as providing capital to develop infrastructure. Amerigroup has contracted with four intensive residential service homes (IRSH) providers, which complies with legislation requirements passed in 2019.

Amerigroup continues to implement health equity plans discussed at previous meetings, with a new partnership with private organizations to conduct outreach to high-risk members through a vendor named MedAware. This outreach will begin in Polk County, focusing on 446 members identified with high needs. Amerigroup plans to expand this outreach and case management work to other counties in both urban and rural areas in coming months.

Amerigroup has partnered with Reach Out and Read, providing a grant to purchase 3,000 books, and supporting programming to the Community Health Center of Southeast Iowa, located in Des Moines County. Amerigroup partnered with Reach Out and Read on this project in hopes of incentivizing well child visits on the part of Medicaid members, as Des Moines County has one of the lowest well child visit rates in the state.

Amerigroup continues its work on social determinants of health (SDOH) with their Champ Housing Stability Initiative. The initiative has served more than 650 Amerigroup members. Some of these members were at risk of eviction; others were houseless and in search of stable housing. John ended with a member story highlighting the impact of this program. One member working with the obstetrics (OB) case management team, was experiencing a high-risk pregnancy and a recent transplant to the area. The member was fully employed but found herself 27 weeks pregnant and homeless. She was living in her car, suffering from severe anxiety and behavioral disorders. Amerigroup found her transition housing in a hotel and within a week found an apartment for her. She only needed help with the deposit and could afford the rent. Amerigroup later received a note from her explaining the dire medical situation she was in when she began working with the case management team saying, "you have saved two lives".

Iowa Total Care

Stacie Maass gave an update for ITC. Stacie began by discussing the collaboration between ITC, Iowa Medicaid and Amerigroup, highlighting the ongoing work to plan the transition out of the PHE. ITC is working on implementing the rate increases passed during the spring legislative session. ITC is

collaborating with Iowa Medicaid to distribute American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds to providers. ITC continues to participate in regular meetings discussing operational and strategic ways to improve the Medicaid program, address work force issues and members access to services. Stacie discussed the work of ITC's quality team, both internally and in public facing settings. A major goal of the quality team is to improve member health outcomes. Part of this work is ITC's focus on health equities and SDOH. ITC is analyzing the impact of existing programs and searching for new ways to connect with members.

ITC continues to support community events such as the Special Olympics. ITC uses community events as an opportunity to reach out to providers in the community and perform outreach and education to members on SDOH barriers such as transportation, food, rent and utilities. ITC has uses geographical data to target events, looking for areas where there is high concentration of members or potential members. ITC participated in Des Moines University's back to school events, providing free back to school physicals, along with information on free programs and other offerings.

ITC has been participating in the Iowa Stops Hunger Program, statewide initiative to combat food insecurity in Iowa. Launching a program working with women ages 21 to 24 who are food insecure, ITC is planning to provide 30 days of meals to those identified in the program.

ITC has bilingual staff who appear quarterly on Spanish speaking radio shows to highlight programs and information.

ITC has a new Doula offering piloting in three counties: Polk, Muscatine, and Johnson. The program sets up new mothers with a doula who can help identify barriers, provide birth support before after and during a pregnancy and work with care managers on other needs.

ITC had a health equity intern over the summer who was passionate about rugby. ITC and the intern partnered with community providers in Iowa City to hold a "Rugby Sports Clinic" for children ages six to 14. The event was designed to increase physical activity, improve mental health and support Iowa's healthiest state initiative. Stacie extended thanks to the members of the University of Iowa women's rugby team who made up most of the volunteers for the event.

ITC's quality team, in addition to direct member outreach, is meeting face-to-face with providers to talk about ways ITC can be more collaborative, inclusive of provider needs and discuss providers' thoughts on how ITC could better serve their members. Stacie said that providers have given feedback on what reporting they find useful and how ITC can tailor reports specific to each provider. One provider had had significant gaps in immunizations, and ITC developed a report to assist that provider with making operational changes to improve immunization.

ITC continues to run several successful texting campaigns for members. Currently ITC has around 200,000 phone numbers they send texts to. ITC is developing the capacity to focus these campaigns, partnering with specific providers to tailor messages members will be more likely to respond to. When they began their text campaigns, ITC targeted specific services one at a time. ITC is developing campaigns that look at the member, piloting a campaign based on women's health and an array of services rather than just one service.

ITC has recently launched new pay-for-performance measures with behavioral health providers. ITC is starting to see data returns from this behavioral health pay-for-performance measure and anticipates

developing further measures including providing incentives for: housing insecurity, homelessness, employment, and follow up after hospitalization for mental illness. Stacie said ITC will work with providers to see how they can help members together.

Stacie ended her update with a member story. This particular member has issues with balance. After multiple conversations with the member, over a period of months, ITC staff made the recommendation to find member a three wheeled bike. Staff found a provider who was willing to offer a donated bike. After biking and being able to spend more time with family, the member is exploring new places, has lost weight, and gained new confidence. The member recently gained a new driver's license to operate a specially-modified car.

Barb Niebel, Iowa Speaking and Hearing Association, commented that during the last meeting of the council she had informed Stacie of several issues that speech, occupational and physical therapists were having with pediatric prior authorizations. The National Imaging Associates (NIA) became involved to help facilitate PAs. Barb stated that NIA involvement has improved the situation, largely by providing education to providers on how to submit PA documentation. However, Barb noted, that there are still issue with PAs in this area. Stacie said she would circle back with Barb and her team.

MCNA

Sabrina Johnson, MCNA Dental, provided an update. Summer is a busy time for dental appointments in addition to a new contract period that began July I, 2022. With the new contract period MCNA is in the process of reviewing updated language, working closely with Iowa Medicaid to ensure MCNA follows the new contract and expectations. MCNA recently completed an external quality review (EQR) audit, a contractual managed care requirement. Sabrina said the audit went well.

MCNA Provider Relations has been gearing up to do site contacts, MCNA likes to complete site contacts at least once a year, if not more. During the site contact MCNA updates and verifies information in their provider portal is accurate, reviews contact information, hours of operation and access and availability. MCNA also reviews whether the provider is accepting new members, this is reflected in MCNA's provider locator tool.

MCNA is adding information to the provider locator tool, which will now provide information on member accommodations, such as whether the location's bathroom has handrails and other accommodations.

MCNA has deployed a practice site performance summary (PSPS) over the last year. The PSPS is available to facilities that have seen 50 or more members in the last 12 months. The PSPS reviews various performance measures and is shared with the provider along with examples from comparative providers to allow providers to make changes to improve their performance. MCNA has increased the number of facilities receiving the PSPS from 76 at the beginning of this year to 125.

MCNA works closely with the Iowa Medicaid Communications team, participating in weekly calls to ensure information and updates for members are in line with Iowa Medicaid. In the last call it was discussed how the meeting could be beneficial for both the dental and medical plans. MCNA will provide the medical plans with information on what dental resources MCNA has available, and how to navigate MCNA's member and provider websites so that the medical plans can relay that to members and providers as necessary. A self-equity assessment has been developed in partnership between MCNA, Delta Dental, Iowa Medicaid and a company called PreVisor. Each question on the survey provides an opportunity for MCNA to contact their members regarding the survey, for every answer there is an action MCNA must take. The assessment includes questions that were mentioned by ITC; assessing if the member needs resources or help with food insecurity or transportation.

As part of the new contract period MCNA is working to update their fee schedule, currently the new feed schedule is being reviewed by MCNA leadership, once this final review is completed the fee schedule will be sent to Iowa Medicaid for review and approval.

Delta Dental of Iowa (DDIA)

Gretchen Hageman, DDIA, provided an update, starting by noting that DDIA has been part of the managed care plan for the Iowa Dental Wellness Program (DWP) and the Hawki program for several years. DDIA began administering the Hawki program dental contract in 2008. Gretchen provided outcome data related to DDIA's reports, noting that Iowa Medicaid is developing a quarterly dashboard. DDIA has about 29 percent of adults that have had a dental service in Iowa. There are roughly a thousand providers under their network, and 69 percent of these providers are seeing 10 or more members. DDIA has a partnership with I-Smile, run through local title five agencies. They serve as infrastructure for care coordination and some direct services for members. Through this partnership 900 members have had a service through I-Smile.

Regarding quality measures for their adult population, DDIA has developed a risk assessment for members. Members fill out the assessment identifying various risk factors such as diabetes. Members are then provided with oral hygiene kits. DDIA works with members that haven't had any services and focuses their outreach and care coordination to get them into a dental home. DDIA is also working to formalize a partnership that would identify members requiring a dental service where the need was identified in an emergency room. This would allow the member to be referred to a dentist to perform the service within a specific timeframe.

DDIA is examining geographic data to identify areas where members have low access rates to dental services, looking for ways to get more members in these areas into the dentist. As far as DWP kids, roughly 47 percent of them have had a dental service. DDIA has contracted with around 1,000 providers to see DWP kids. 72 percent of these providers are seeing 10 or more members. I-Smile infrastructure has provided 15,000 DWP kids with around 70,000 services through clinics. DDIA has developed head start sealant clinics at the school childcare center to provide dental sealant services to children and identify high-risk members.

56 percent of Hawki members have had a dental service in the past year. The focus area for Hawki is adolescents with no dental services. DDIA is excited to have the risk assessment Sabrina mentioned in her update as well, looking forward to having additional data related to SDOH and using that data as they work with members. DDIA's efforts around providers have been focused on continuing to address access issues, particularly in certain geographic areas, developing incentives for providers to rejoin the Medicaid system. Angie commented that she is a fan of the I-Smile program.

OPEN DISCUSSION

Dr. David Beeman raised several concerns about the current composition of the council, specifically that he feels the current make-up of the council does not conform to state and federal regulations. Additionally, Dr. Beeman is concerned about the council's lack of diversity, being composed of primarily white middle class to upper middle-class members. Dr. Beeman is also interested in evaluating how well the council represents children and children's mental health. Dr. Beeman stressed that he does not want to raise these issues as an offense to anyone currently serving on the council.

Dr. Beeman's first concern regarding the composition of the council is that in his interpretation of the federal and state regulations, they require at least once council member to be a recipient of Medicaid. Dr. Beeman stated that he is unsure if this definition extends to family members, and that he is unaware of anyone on the council receiving Medicaid. Director Matney replied that it is her understanding of the code that it does include family members.

Dr. Beeman's second concern is that the lowa Code, in the paragraph that outlines requirements for the five public members of the council, states "none of whom shall be members of, or practitioners of, or have a pecuniary interest in any of the professional or business entities specifically represented under paragraph "a". Paragraph "a" here refers to the list of 41 professional and business entities outlined in lowa Code as being statutory non-voting members of the council. Dr. Beeman stated that the five public members currently serving on the council include two physicians and a dietician, which conflicts with the cited requirement. Dr. Beeman's next concern is that the cited requirement contradicts federal regulations which require at least one board-certified physician to serve on the council. Dr. Beeman's reading of the federal regulation and the lowa code taken together is that a board-certified physician is required but must be elected from among the 41 professional and business entities, and not appointed as a public member. Dr. Beeman asked the council to consider whether his concerns are correct or not, and if they are valid, what course of action will be taken to remedy the conflicts with federal and state regulations, adding that regardless of the council's response he is still concerned about the lack of diverse representation.

Angie stated that in the past she and Gerd Clabaugh, former director of the Iowa Department of Public Health, compared federal and state regulations concerning the council. Part of that examination was looking at how other states had structured their analogous councils, and Iowa had the largest council membership of any state they looked at. At the time the council had 60 members. The council retains this high membership, but the majority are non-voting members. Angie stated that due to this large statutory membership it would be very challenging to find public representatives that do not fall under one of the umbrellas of the wide membership base. Jason Haglund added that he was serving on the council with Gerd when the council was restructured in 2019, and discussions like Dr. Beeman's concerns regarding the council's compliance with regulations were had then, and Jason and Gerd were satisfied with the council's compliance at that time. Jason added that Dr. Beeman's concerns about inclusion and equity are something that should be considered further. Jason asserted that there are current public members who have adult children who receive Medicaid and have experiences with the Medicaid system.

Dr. Beeman stated that even if the council composition conformed to state and federal regulations at the time of the restructuring of the council in 2019, he feels that does not mean the council currently

complies with regulations. Dr. Beeman stated that he believes the state regulations are clear about composition requirements and asserted his belief that the intent is to foster a conversation between recipients, providers, and the Department to improve the Medicaid program in Iowa. Addressing the idea that a family member of a person receiving Medicaid fulfills the federal regulations, Dr. Beeman questioned the boundaries of the term, stating he has a sister who receives both Medicare and Medicaid, but believes that he does not fit the requirements of the federal regulations.

Angie stated that currently and historically, finding applicants to serve as public members of the council has been a struggle. Angie encouraged members of the council to reach out to people in their communities to find others who are willing and able to take the time to sit on the council.

Kady Reese, Iowa Medical Society, stated she found the conversation on diversity and inclusion very interesting. Kady previously served as a patient and family engagement champion with CMS. Citing her experience with CMS Kady encouraged the council to consider how prospective public members would engage with the council, how they could be empowered to engage, how they would be equipped to engage. Kady said this may be an opportunity for the council to work with the Iowa Primary Care Association (PCA) and federally qualifying health center (FQHC) partners who, by nature of their type of health center, have consumers serve on their boards and committees. These members may have the experience and interest required to be effective public members of the council.

Director Matney added that the council should remember the Hawki board and encourage the two groups to consider how they could work together collaboratively, suggesting a standing agenda item in which a Hawki board member could present to the council and vice versa. Director Matney also raised concerns about expanding membership too broadly, as the previous iteration of the council had issues meeting quorum requirements. Angie said that she serves on the Hawki board and may be able to facilitate collaboration between both boards. Dr. Beeman stated he was not advocating to returning to the previous iteration of the council, agreeing with the concerns about meeting quorum.

ADJOURNMENT

Meeting adjourned at 3:10 PM.

Submitted by, Michael Kitzman Recording Secretary mk

Department of HUMAN SERVICES

DHS Council Meeting Minutes

July 14, 2022

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBERS	DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
Rebecca Peterson - present	Director Kelly Garcia – present
Skylar Mayberry-Mayes – absent	Sarah Reisetter - present
Kimberly Kudej – present	Matt Highland – present
Sam Wallace – present	Sarah Ekstrand - present
Jack Willey – present	Faith Sandberg-Rodriguez-present
Monika Jindal - present	Nancy Freudenberg – present
Kay Fisk – present	Elizabeth Matney - present
	Vern Armstrong - present
	Cory Turner - present

EX-OFFICIO LEGISLATIVE MEMBERS

Representative Joel Fry – absent

Senator Mark Costello – absent

Senator Amanda Ragan – present

Representative Timi Brown-Powers - absent

Call to Order

Chair Rebecca Peterson called the Council meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. via zoom teleconference.

Roll Call

Peterson, Fisk, Kudej, Willey, Wallace, and Jindal were present. Mayberry-Mayes was absent. All ex-officio members were absent.

Approval of Minutes

A motion was made by Wallace and seconded by Willey to approve the minutes of the June 9, 2022, meeting. **MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED**

<u>Rules</u>

R-1 Amendments to Chapter 5, "Declatory Orders," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the Iowa Code)

This rule making makes changes to contact information and minor changes to wording for consistency throughout the rules. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Kudej to approve and seconded by Willey **MOTION UNAMIMOUSLY CARRIED**

R-2 Amendments to Chapter 47, "Diversion Initiatives," Iowa Administrative Code. (Aligns rules with current practice).

This rule making updates the name of Iowa's food assistance program to the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program to be consistent with the name of the federal program and to alleviate confusion around food benefits in Division I. Division II relates to the Family Self-Sufficiency Grants Program. Rules are updated to clarify the Bureau of Refugee Services can provide PROMISE JOBS Services to refugees who have not yet obtained United States citizenship. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Jindal to approve and seconded by Kudej **MOTION UNAMIMOUSLY CARRIED**

R-3 Amendments to Chapter 158, "Foster Home Insurance Fund," Iowa Administrative Code. (Updates insurance fund to cover auto damage)

This rule making updates the insurance coverage under the Foster Home Insurance Fund to include auto damage by foster care children as a covered expense. This rule making does not change the premium or the total costs the Department currently pays. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Willey to approve and seconded by Jindal **MOTION UNAMIMOUSLY CARRIED**

The following amendments to the administrative rules were presented as Noticed rules.

N-1 Amendments to Chapter 36, "Facility Assessments," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the Iowa Code).

This rule making proposes technical changes to remove the word "enterprise" from Iowa Medicaid, removes form names and updates unit names and addresses. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

N-2 Amendments to Chapter 66, "Emergency Food Assistance," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the Iowa Code).

This proposed rulemaking updates the name of the Division to Financial, Food and Work Supports. Additional information is provided on the Emergency Food Assistance Program (TEFAP) for additional guidance to consumers on how eligibility is determined for the program and how claims are established against TEFAP entities. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

N-3 Amendments to Chapter 79, "Other Policies Relating to Providers of Medical and Remedial Care,"

Iowa Administrative Code. (Amends documentation requirements for narrative service encounters). This proposed rule will positively impact direct care service providers by removing the requirement for narrative service documentation for each service encounter or shift and replace it with the requirements to provide a narrative only when the incident, illness, unusual or atypical event occurs during the service encounter. The proposed amendments will clarify that Medicaid providers must include all records and documentation to support the services provided to members and to allow accurate adjudication of the claim. In addition, documentation requirements must meet the professional standards pertaining to the service provided. Providers have requested the proposed rule amendments in response to the direct care workforce crisis.

N-4 Amendments to Chapter 89, "Debts Due from Transfer of Assets," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and Iowa Code).

This rule making updates the effective date for transfers of assets that took place between July 1, 1993, and December 31, 2018. This portion of the program was suspended effective January 1, 2019, and there have not been any referrals to recover resources from anyone who received the transferred resources since then. This review is part of the department's five- year rules review process.

N-5 Amendments to Chapter 91, "Medicare Drug Subsidy," Iowa Administrative Code. (Implements new child care ratio legislation, HF2198)

Chapter 91 provides the framework for the Medicare Drug Subsidy program for Medicare Part D beneficiaries. This proposed rulemaking removes forms that have become obsolete, updates the rules and provides correct rules references as part of the department's five-year rules review process.

N-6 Amendments to Chapter 170, "Child Care Services," Iowa Administrative Code (Implements HF 2252 from the 2022 legislative session).

Previously for a parent to be eligible for child care assistance (CCA) a medical incapacity needed to be considered "temporary". Under HF 2252 the Code of Iowa requirements are changed and removal of this temporary requirement will allow a family with one permanently disabled parent to be CCA-eligible based upon the needs of the parent who is not disabled.

A motion was made by Kudej to approve and seconded by Fisk **MOTION UNAMIMOUSLY CARRIED**

HHS Alignment Update

Public Health Deputy Director Sarah Reisetter provided an update on Phase 1 of the HHS alignment work that has been taking place. Her team has also been actively planning for the Phase 2 portion. She stated that the team has worked extensively on developing a new table of organization for our new HHS agency and is currently mapping all employees to it. Town Halls are scheduled for July 29th for all employees, and where the table of organization will be introduced. Her team surveyed over 1400 employees and have used those results to develop a new mission, vision, and guiding principles for our new agency. We will also be unveiling the new branding during the Town Halls.

Director's Report

Director Kelly Garcia followed up Sarah's update with more details regarding alignment. She shared that we have held 2 HHS Leadership retreats with over 90 team members in attendance. It was a great time to bring our vision to reality and to allow folks to get to know each other. Both retreats were a big success. Our new HHS agency went live on July 1st with a press release and much work continues including work on our new website which will launch in October.

Director Garcia informed the Council that have been 3 reported cases of monkeypox in Iowa. Public health team members have been working with local public health agencies to ensure contact tracing and vaccine administration are occurring. All 3 cases have gone as they should.

She also shared that beginning July 16^{th,} the National Suicide prevention lifeline goes live. People experiencing thoughts of suicide can call 988 and reach an experienced counselor. The existing number will remain operational. HHS will issue a press release July 15th and has a social media campaign planned to ensure lowans are aware of the new services and how to access them.

Adjournment

A motion was made by Willey to adjourn the meeting and was seconded by Kudej

Meeting adjourned at 11:08 a.m.

Respectfully Submitted by: Julie McCauley Council Secretary

STATE OF IOWA DEPARTMENT OF Health and Human services

Adam Gregg

Kelly Garcia DIRECTOR

Council on Human Services Meeting Minutes

COUNCIL MEMBERS	HHS STAFF
Rebecca Peterson	Director Kelly Garcia
Skylar Mayberry-Mayes	Sarah Reisetter
Kimberly Kudej	Matt Highland
Sam Wallace	Sarah Ekstrand
Jack Willey	Faith Sandberg-Rodriguez
Monika Jindal	Nancy Freudenberg
Kay Fisk	Elizabeth Matney

Representative Joel Fry

Senator Mark Costello

Senator Amanda Ragan

Representative Timi Brown-Powers

CALL TO ORDER

Chair Rebecca Peterson called the Council meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. via zoom teleconference.

ROLL CALL

All Council members were present, all ex-officio members were absent.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A motion was made by Willey and seconded by Wallace to approve the July 14, 2022, meeting minutes.

PUBLIC HEARING PRESENTATIONS

Presentations were given verbally and in written from by the following stakeholders

• Iowa Healthcare Association

- Early Childhood Iowa
- Iowa Dental Association
- Iowa Behavioral Health Association

RULES

R-1. Amendments to Chapter 11, "Collection of Public Assistance Debts," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the Iowa Code) This rule making updates the name of the Food Assistance program to the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP). Definitions are updated and references to forms are removed that are no longer used. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Wallace to approve and seconded by Kudej **MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED**

R-2. Amendments to Chapter 40, "Application for Aid," Chapter 41, "Granting Assistance," Chapter 46 "Overpayment Recovery," and Chapter 60, "Refugee Cash Assistance," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice, Iowa Code, and federal regulations)

This rule making updates the name of Iowa's food assistance program to the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), removes incorrect or obsolete cross references, rescinds obsolete rules, adds information on the kinship caregiver program, updates the division name and adds clarifying language to rules. Time frames for refugee cash assistance have been updated for refugees who entered the country on or after October 1, 2021, to allow for 12 months of assistance based on federal regulations. Rules have also been added to provide information on different categories of Afghan immigrants. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Willey to approve and seconded by Mayberry-Mayes **MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED**

R-3. Amendments to Chapter 107, "Certification of Adoption Investigators,"

Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the Iowa Code) Clarification on dependent adult abuse being part of the evaluation process for record checks was added to the administrative rules. Forms were updated to add dependent adult abuse as a category. Updated language to cover records checks and reports was also added. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Fisk to approve and seconded by Kudej **MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED**

R-4. Amendments to Chapter 109, "Child Care Centers," Iowa Administrative Code. (Implements new child care ratio legislation, HF2198; Adopt Emergency after Noticed) These rules allow an increased number of children to be served per staff person in the 2year-old and 3-year-old age categories in licensed child care centers. The rules modify requirements for combining age groups and allows a staff person under the age of 18 to provide care to school age children, without being under the direct supervision of an adult. The rules also clarify that persons under the age of 18 shall not be the sole provider on the premises of a child care facility or transport children.

A motion was made by Kudej to approve and seconded by Wallace

MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED

R-5. Amendments to Chapter III, "Family Life Homes," Iowa Administrative Code (Align rules with current practice and the Iowa Code)

These rules define the Family Life Home program administered through State Supplementary Assistance services. The names of the forms were removed to eliminate unnecessary future changes when form names change. This review is part of department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Mayberry-Mayes to approve and seconded by Wallace MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED

R-6. Amendments to Chapter 130, "General Provisions," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the Iowa Code)

This rule making revises outdated language and replaces it with current person-centered language. A link to poverty income guidelines is being used instead of using income charts that need to be updated annually. The term child abuse investigation is being updated to child abuse assessment. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Wallace to approve and seconded by Fisk

MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED

R-7. Amendments to Chapter 131, "Social Casework," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the Iowa Code)

The rule on adverse actions is being updated to specify the current rule reference. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Kudej to approve and seconded by Willey

MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED

R-8. Amendments to Chapter 160, "Adoption Opportunity Grant Program," Iowa Administrative Code. (Rescinds chapter)

The Adoption Opportunity Grant Program is not funded in Iowa. As a result, the chapter is no longer needed and is being rescinded. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Wallace to approve and seconded by Willey **MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED**

R-9. Amendments to Chapter 187, "Aftercare Services Program," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the Iowa Code)

This rule making extends eligibility to youth ages 21 and 22 years, regardless of whether the youth participated in the aftercare program between the ages of 18 and 21 years old. It also extends eligibility to youth who participate in the Preparation for Adult Living (PAL) program, even if the youth did not spend six of 12 months in foster care prior to aging out of care. This change aligns the rules with Iowa Code. The meaning and intent of preservice has been clarified. Clarification on the payment of monthly stipends and treatment of income has also been added. This rule making is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Fisk to approve and seconded by Wallace

MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED

R-10. Amendments to Chapter 203, "Iowa Adoption Exchange," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the Iowa Code)

These rules update definitions used in the program and clarifies the process for registering children in the Iowa Adoption Exchange. Children with special needs under state guardianship shall be registered on the Iowa Adoption Exchange within 60 days of termination of parental rights unless a deferral is granted. All children under state guardianship for whom an adoptive home is not available within 90 days of termination of parental rights shall be registered on the exchange. This rule making is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Willey to approve and seconded by Wallace

MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED

R-11. Amendments to Chapter 204, "Subsidized Guardianship Program," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the Iowa Code) These rules add additional clarification when a subsidized guardianship can continue to age 21. Language is also added to provide information on when a subsidy would be terminated. This rule making is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Kudej to approve and seconded by Mayberry-Mayes MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED

The following amendments to the administrative rules are presented as Noticed rules.

N-1. Amendments to Chapter 54, "Facility Participation for RCFs," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the Iowa Code)

This rule making aligns residential care facilities (RCFs) rules with existing policy. RCFs no longer use cost reporting, but instead have a set per diem that changes annually. Definitions are updated and references to forms are removed that are no longer used. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

N-2. Amendments to Chapter 79, "Other Policies Relating to Providers of Medical and Remedial Care – Documentation Requirements," Iowa Administrative Code.

(Provider documentation requirements)

This rule making amends the documentation requirements for narrative service documentation for each service encounter and each shift for 24-hour services. This rule making removes the requirement for narrative service documentation for each service encounter or shift and replace it with the requirement to provide a narrative only when the incident, illness, unusual or atypical event occurs during the service encounter. The proposed rules clarify Medicaid providers must include records and documentation to substantiate the services provided to the member and all information necessary to allow accurate adjudication of the claim. In addition, documentation requirements must meet the professional standards pertaining to the service provided. Providers have requested the proposed amendments in response to the direct care workforce shortage.

N-3. Amendments to Chapter 78, "Amount, Duration and Scope of Medical and Remedial Services- Updating HCBS Habilitation Eligibility Criteria," Iowa Administrative Code. (Meet federal requirements for HCBS Habilitation Program)

The purpose of this proposed rulemaking is to amend the needs-based and risk-based eligibility criteria for the Home and Community Based Services (HCBS) Habilitation program. As a condition of approval for the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) - Section 9817, the Centers for Medicaid and Medicare (CMS) required states to meet maintenance of effort (MOE) requirements. States are also required to update their Medicaid state plan as a condition of approval due to the MOE requirements for ARPA. Under ARPA states are allowed enhanced FMAP for HCBS services, however, states may not impose stricter eligibility standards, methodologies, or procedures for HCBS programs and services than were in place on April 1, 2021.

N-4. Amendments to Chapter 79, "Other Policies Relating to Providers of Medical and Remedial Care – Cost Reporting Rules," Iowa Administrative Code. (Updating cost reports for HCBS providers)

These proposed amendments were drafted in collaboration with a stakeholder workgroup in response to proposed legislation regarding utilization of generally accepted accounting principles in completing Home and Community-Based Services (HCBS) waiver cost reports. These amendments clarify which programs submit cost reports; remove the 20% limitation from all salary, benefits, and payroll tax expenses, change the mileage reimbursement use for personal vehicles to match the amount allowed by the IRS. The amendments also change the cost reporting period to align with the provider's fiscal year, set the maximum compensation allowed for top positions, and provide definitions for key terms. The rules also add language regarding rebasing for recalculation of rates every three years.

N-5. Amendments to Chapter 93, "PROMISE JOBS," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the Iowa Code)

Proposed changes are being made to clarify language, accurately reflect the jobs readiness, and job search activities and update case retention rules in the PROMISE JOBS program. These changes are technical in nature and do not impact caseloads or program costs. This review is part of the department's five- year rules review process.

N-6. Amendments to Chapter 109, "Child Care Centers," Chapter 110, "Child Development Homes," and Chapter 120, "Child Care Homes," Iowa Administrative Code. (Implements new child care legislation, HF2589)

Under Iowa Code 135 C persons defined as physicians may conduct well-child checks. This rule making expands that function to chiropractors, as well-child checks are within their scope of practice. These proposed rules also modify rules to allow regulatory reductions to licensed child care centers to ease burdens on licensed centers. Results are based on a survey that was conducted with licensed child care center directors in response to the Governor's Child Care Task Force. These amendments include modifications to written policies, changes in allowable points for directors and supervisors, updates in radon requirements, changes in training requirements for providers caring for school-age children, and changes in sharing information on completed record checks. (Implements HF 2589)

N-7. Amendments to Chapter 116, "Licensing and Regulation of residential Facilities for children with an Intellectual Disability or Brain Injury," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the Iowa Code)

This proposed rulemaking updates a cross-reference to the Iowa Code section that contains the definition of brain injury. Updating the cross reference makes it easier for a user to find the definition. This proposed rulemaking is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

N-8. Amendments to Chapter 119, "Record Check Evaluation," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the Iowa Code)

This rule making provides the form number of the document that must be submitted by a requesting party when submitting a request for a record check evaluation. The proposed amendment identifies the way the form and documentation may be submitted to include mail, electronic mail, and facsimile. This rule making is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

N-9. Amendments to Chapter 168, "Child Care Expansion Programs," Iowa Administrative Code. (Rescind chapter)

This chapter is being rescinded as it contains outdated rules no longer used for wrap-around child care programs and expansion of school-age child care programs. Funding has not been allocated for these programs for over ten years. This rule making is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Wallace to approve and seconded by Mayberry-Mayes **MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED**

MCO QUARTERLY REPORT, SFY 2022, QUARTER 3

Kurt Behrens, Medicaid Management Analyst, presented an executive summary of the MCO quarterly report to the Council. Kurt reported that currently we have 787,187 members enrolled in Medicaid. Enrollment has increased by 11,680 members between quarter 2 and quarter 3.

HHS BRANDING UPDATE

Sarah Ekstrand, HHS Public Information Officer, provided a preview of the new HHS Brand. She stated the overall goal with the new brand was wanting people to know we are the State of lowa, and we are trusted and reliable. This brand is a fresh start for our new agency, and we have a comprehensive style guide with different variations that serve the needs of our teams. Sarah shared our color palette, adding it has rich and vibrant colors which tie into our lowa roots. The look and feel of images we have chosen to convey a message of warmth, support, and inclusion.

DIRECTOR'S REPORT

HHS Director Kelly Garcia shared that Dr. Robb Kruse, our new State Medical Director, has been meeting with team members on a bi-weekly basis. His start date is in October.

HHS is continuing to actively monitor suspected and confirmed cases of Monkeypox and will continue to adjust vaccine eligibility criteria based on local data, federal guidelines, and vaccine availability. Right now, there are 13 confirmed cases in Iowa, and we have posted a regional map on our IDPH website of where those cases are located. We are actively deploying vaccine as part of a targeted distribution for high-risk individuals.

Director Garcia informed the Council that she has been traveling around lowa as part of a listening tour in partnership with Supreme Court Chief Justice Susan Christensen. We are hearing from our providers, team members, and families in the juvenile justice and child welfare space. It has been a wonderful effort in four cities around lowa. There will be 12 visits through the end of October. This is in concert with significant work we are doing on our child welfare side, as we align the structures of our new agency. We will be launching a request for proposal, to hire an external entity to come in and help us access our child welfare work. The goal is to determine how many case workers we need, the right case index for them to hold, so we can ask for more resources.

HHS is beginning the budget development process for SFY24. The department will create a formal budget book which will be reviewed at the joint September 14th meeting with the DHS Council and State Board of Health.

Director Garcia introduced the new HHS Table of Organization and provided an overview of the new structure of the agency.

ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by Wallace to adjourn the meeting and was seconded by Fisk.

Meeting adjourned at 12:00 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted by: Julie McCauley Council Secretary

STATE OF IOWA DEPARTMENT OF Health and Human services

Adam Gregg

Kelly Garcia DIRECTOR

Council on Human Services Meeting Minutes SEPTEMBER 14, 2022

COUNCIL MEMBERS	HHS STAFF
Rebecca Peterson	Director Kelly Garcia
Skylar Mayberry-Mayes	Sarah Reisetter
Kimberly Kudej	Matt Highland
Sam Wallace	Sarah Ekstrand
Jack Willey	Faith Sandberg-Rodriguez
Monika Jindal	Nancy Freudenberg
Kay Fisk	Elizabeth Matney

EX-OFFICIO LEGISLATIVE MEMBERS		
Representative Joel Fry		
Senator Mark Costello		
Senator Amanda Ragan		
Representative Timi Brown-Powers		

CALL TO ORDER

Chair Rebecca Peterson called the Council meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. via zoom teleconference.

ROLL CALL

All Council members were present, all ex-officio members were absent.

DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Director Kelly Garcia provided an update on the juvenile justice tour with Chief Justice Susan Christensen highlighting the topics of child welfare, bed capacity, and staffing. She stated that when Dr. Kruse joins our team, he will be participating in the listening sessions with community partners to help develop recommendations for the legislature.

Director Garcia announced on August 31st, two MCO contracts were awarded to Amerigroup and Molina. Iowa Total Care is on a separate contract cycle and more updates regarding ITC

will come later. She shared an update on Monkeypox cases in the state and stated we are doing well in policy and vaccine rollout procedures.

Director Garcia shared that some patients have been moved from our Glenwood facility to our Woodward facility successfully. A quality oversight position will be filled to help facilitate this transition as well as other transitions between facilities to the community in the future.

HHS GOVERNANCE DISCUSSION

Rebecca led the discussion and provided a short overview outlining the differences in how the DHS Council and Board of Health are structured.

Rebecca stated that the intent is to merge the separate governing bodies into a single governing body for the newly formed Department of Health and Human Services. Membership should be an odd number for voting purposes. She asked if an 11-member governing body is appropriate or should there be less or more. Several members of both the boards agreed that having at least 11 members on the board would be needed given the complexities of the current boards. Many stated it was important to have representation from physicians, substance abuse providers, and the child welfare field. A few members mentioned 13 members might be more appropriate.

Rebecca asked the boards how long each term should last, and what is the maximum term limit that should be established for the new governing body.

Newer members of the board and council expressed interest in having a longer term given that the first year is a learning experience for many, especially as it pertains to the structure, education, and comprehension of duties and responsibilities. Three years was determined to be a minimum; however, members did wish the future governing board to have between four to five years as a term.

Rebecca then inquired what the critical qualifications should be for the respective board members. Should these qualifications be unique to each board position (i.e. each of the board members hold a unique qualification), or should there be multiple board members with similar qualifications (e.g. two members with public health, two members with family well-being, etc.)

Board and council members discussed the need to have varied representation of members with unique qualifications. Members expressed great interest in having multiple board members with similar qualifications and significant past experiences. Those with other committees or work history that falls within scope of the board duties are a great need along with professional experience.

Rebecca asked the board members about meeting frequency. Most of the members of both boards suggested meeting monthly to avoid delays in rule making.

She then asked what our board members think is the role, responsibility, and duty of the new governing board.

Board and council members want to understand the shift of the new agency in strategic planning. Some members stated they would like both entities to remain separate. Other members proposed having advisory committees and other boards within the agency share updates and summaries to the larger board at rule making meetings.

Rebecca concluded the discussion by asking the members how they envision the relationship between the governing body and the various advisory bodies that support the agency.

Most of the members expressed interest in having more collaboration with other board members. They would like additional input from other committees to understand the reasons behind rule changes, policies, and how programs are conducting their work.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A motion was made by Wallace and seconded by Willey to approve the August 11, 2022, meeting minutes.

RULES

R-1. Amendments to Chapter 36, "Facility Assessments," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the Iowa Code). This rule making enacts technical changes to remove the word "enterprise" from Iowa Medicaid. Rules are updated to remove form names and provide current unit names and addresses. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Wallace to approve and seconded by Jindal MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED

R-2. Amendments to Chapter 62, "Rent Reimbursement," Iowa Administrative Code. (Sets criteria for rent reimbursement program).

lowa Code Chapter 425 provides for a property tax credit for low-income elderly and disabled lowans. To provide parity for low-income elderly and disabled individuals who do not own property the law also establishes reimbursement for rent. Currently both the property tax credit and the rent reimbursement programs are administered by the lowa Department of Revenue. Effective January 1, 2023, DHS takes over administration of the rent reimbursement portion of the program. This rulemaking provides the criteria for filing and processing those claims.

A motion was made by Kudej to approve and seconded by Fisk MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED

R-3. Amendments to Chapter 65, "Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Administration," Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice, Iowa Code, and federal regulations).

This rule making updates the name of Iowa's food assistance program to the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), updates the name of the chapter and provides current definitions. Incorrect or obsolete cross references are removed, and obsolete rules are rescinded. Rules on application processing are also updated. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Wallace to approve and seconded by Mayberry-Mayes MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED

R-4. Amendments to Chapter 66, "Emergency Food Assistance Program," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and federal regulations).

This proposed rulemaking updates the name of the Division to Financial, Food and Work Supports. Additional information is provided on The Emergency Food Assistance Program (TEFAP) for additional guidance to consumers on how eligibility is determined for the program and how claims are established against TEFAP entities. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Wallace to approve and seconded by Kudej MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED

R-5. Amendments to Chapter 79, "Other Policies Relating to Providers of Medical and Remedial Care," Iowa Administrative Code. (Implements new documentation requirements related to delivering services. Adopt Emergency after Noticed)

This rule making amends the documentation requirements for narrative service documentation for each service encounter and each shift for 24-hour services. This rule making removes the requirement for narrative service documentation for each service encounter or shift and replaces it with the requirement to provide a narrative only when the incident, illness, unusual or atypical event occurs during the service encounter. The rules clarify Medicaid providers must include records and documentation to substantiate the services provided to the member and all information necessary to allow accurate adjudication of the claim. In addition, documentation requirements must meet the professional standards pertaining to the service provided. Providers have requested the proposed amendments in response to the direct care workforce shortage.

A motion was made by Fisk to approve and seconded by Jindal MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED

R-6. Amendments to Chapter 89, "Debts Due from Transfer of Assets," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and Iowa Code).

This rule making updates the effective date for transfers of assets that took place between July I, 1993, and December 31, 2018. This portion of the program was suspended effective January I, 2019, and there have not been any referrals to recover resources from anyone who received the transferred resources since then. This review is part of the department's five- year rules review process.

A motion was made by Willey to approve and seconded by Wallace MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED

R-7. Amendments to Chapter 91, "Medicare Drug Subsidy," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and federal law)

Chapter 91 provides the framework for the Medicare Drug Subsidy program for Medicare Part D beneficiaries. This rule making removes forms that have become obsolete, updates the rules, and provides correct rules references as part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Kudej to approve and seconded by Mayberry-Mayes MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED

R-8. Amendments to Chapter 109, "Child Care Centers," Iowa Administrative Code. (Implements new child care ratio legislation, HF2198; Adopt Emergency after Noticed) These rules allow an increased number of children to be served per staff person in the 2-yearold and 3-year-old age categories in licensed child care centers. The rules modify requirements for combining age groups and allows a staff person under the age of 18 to provide care to school age children, without being under the direct supervision of an adult. The rules also clarify that persons under the age of 18 shall not be the sole provider on the premises of a child care facility or transport children.

A motion was made by Fisk to approve and seconded by Willey MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED

R-9. Amendments to Chapter 170, "Child Care Services," Iowa Administrative Code (Implements HF 2252 from the 2022 legislative session; Adopt Emergency after Noticed). Previously for a parent to be eligible for child care assistance (CCA) a medical incapacity

needed to be considered "temporary". Under HF 2252 the Code of Iowa requirements are changed and removal of this temporary requirement will allow a family with one permanently disabled parent to be CCA-eligible based upon the needs of the parent who is not disabled. The following amendments to the administrative rules are presented as Noticed rules.

A motion was made by Kudej to approve and seconded by Wallace MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED

N-1. Amendments to Chapter 61, "Refugee Services Program," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the federal code).

This proposed rule making updated the definition of "refugee" to match the definition in the federal regulations. References to federal agencies are updated to reflect the current name of those agencies. Services that are specifically designed to assist refugees with obtaining employment and improving the employability of work skills of the individual are revised to match federal regulations and clarify services that are available. The time frame to which services may be provided to newly arriving refugees is increased to five years after arrival in the United States to reflect the Department's current practices. Outdated processes are removed from the rules. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

N-2. Amendments to Chapter 85, "Services in Psychiatric Institutions," Iowa Administrative Code. (Aligns rules with current practice and Iowa Code)

This rule making updates federal code references and cross references to other Department rule chapters. Obsolete form names were removed from the rules. The locations of the state mental health institutes were updated. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

N-3. Amendments to Chapter 117, "Foster Parent Training," Iowa Administrative Code. (Aligns rules with current practice and Iowa Code)

Before a foster parent is licensed the individual must complete a variety of agency-approved training courses that teach foster parents how to support a child's overall well-being and emotional needs. This rule making allows in-service training to be provided whether face-to-face or through interactive virtual training when provided to a group or an individual foster family. Training requirements are updated. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

N-4. Amendments to Chapter 133, "IV-A Emergency Assistance Program," Iowa Administrative Code. (Aligns rules with current practice and Iowa Code)

Definitions are being updated to match those used in other Department programs and to be consistent across programs. Services that are no longer available have been removed from the rules. A reference to the food assistance program is being updated to the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) to reflect the current program's name change. The list of specified relatives a child must be living with or has lived with in the past six months has been expanded to match current policy. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

N-5. Amendments to Chapter 142, "Interstate Compact on the Placement of Children," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the Iowa Code). Proposed changes are being made to reflect what appears in the Code. Cross-references to Iowa Code have been updated. A clarification is made that placement into Iowa from any Iocation or from Iowa to another Iocation may include to or from any state, territory or possession of the United States, the District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and with the consent of Congress, the government of Canada or any providence thereof. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

N-6. Amendments to Chapter 143, "Interstate Compact on the Placement of Juveniles," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the Iowa Code) The name of the governing body of the Interstate Compact on the Placement of Juveniles is updated to reflect the current name, the Interstate Commission for Juveniles. This Commission includes representatives from all 50 states, the District of Columbia and the US Virgin Islands who work together to preserve child welfare and promote public safety. Form names used to send a juvenile out of state under the commission are revised to reflect the current name. The proposed rulemaking clarifies the Department must pay for the return of any runaway, escapee, or absconder to the State of Iowa for whom the Department has legal custody or guardianship.

N-7. Amendments to Chapter 166, "Quality Improvement Initiative Grants," Iowa Administrative Code (Align rules with current practice and the Iowa Code). Proposed rules are updated to align with federal regulations regarding the use of civil money penalties (CMP) imposed by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid (CMS). These rules also update the Department's purposes for CMP emergency reserve fund grants. This proposed rulemaking is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

N-8. Amendments to Chapter 177, "In-Home Health-Related Care," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the Iowa Code).

Currently the In-Home Health-Related Care (IHHRC) Program requires a registered nurse to provide supervision of a client's care plan to receive services. Over the past several years the Department has experienced more nursing agencies opting out of providing supervision services for this program. Medicaid programs providing similar services under the home-and community-based programs do not require a supervising practitioner when the services being provided are considered unskilled or is for personal care services. These proposed amendments remove nursing supervision for unskilled personal care services and maintains nursing supervision for skilled services. Proposed amendments also identify how the program is implemented from the application process through termination if termination is required. This rule making is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Mayberry-Mayes to approve and seconded by Willey MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED

ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by Kudej to adjourn the meeting and was seconded by Mayberry-Mayes Meeting adjourned at 12:00 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted by: Julie McCauley Council Secretary